
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

Thursday, December 5, 2013 – 7:00 PM 
 Chairperson Mick Routh 

 Commissioners Ron Graves 
  Gayle Ortiz 
  Linda Smith 
  TJ Welch 
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. November 7, 2013 Draft Planning Commission Minutes 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 209 Fanmar Way      #13-150      APN: 035:163-01 & 02 

Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit to remodel an existing single-family 
home in the CV (Central Village) Zoning District 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Vince and Sheryl Barabba 
Representative: John Hofacre, Architect, filed: 10/24/2013 

 
B. 141 Magellan Street      #13-153      APN 036-192-20 

Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for remodel of existing single-family 
home in the R-1 (Single-Family) Zoning District.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Gene Benson 
Representative: Roy Horn, filed: 11/4/2013 

 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, December 5, 2013  2 
  

 

C. 723 El Salto Drive      #13-155      APN: 036-143-35 
Coastal Development Permit and Minor Land Division to create two lots of record, and 
request for a two-year extension to the previously approved Minor Land Division to 
convert four apartment units to condominiums in the R-1/VS (Single Family/Visitor 
Serving) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Doug Dodds 
Representative:  Thacher & Thompson, filed:  11/5/2013 

 
D. 904 Sir Francis      #06-061      APN 036-222-07 

Request for a one-year extension to a previously approved Coastal Development Permit 
and Architectural and Site Review for the remodel of an existing single-family residence 
and construction of a new second story in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Justin and Lisa Maffia 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 

 
A. 2178 41st Avenue      #12-080      APN: 034-221-02 

Modification to Design Permit and a Conditional Use Permit to incorporate a carwash 
into the recently approved commercial retail building (7-Eleven) in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District.   
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Ed Hadad, filed: 3/28/13 
Representative:  Joe Nguyen, ASI Consulting 

 
B. 115 San Jose         13-160      APN 035-221-15 

Conditional Use Permit for outdoor seating and an outdoor ATM in the CV (Central 
Village) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Capitola Associates, LLC 
Representative:  Shane Gomes, filed:  11/12/2013 

 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the next Planning Commission on Thursday, January 16, 2014 at 7:00 PM, in the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
 
 

 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – Thursday, December 5, 2013  3 
  

 

 
APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 
All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 
Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1st 
Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 
available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community 
Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings can also be viewed 
from the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us 
 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 
 
Chairperson Routh called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order at 7 p.m.     
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners:  Ron Graves, Gayle Ortiz, Linda Smith and TJ Welch, and Chairperson 
Mick Routh 
   

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - None 

 
B. Public Comments - None 

 
C. Commission Comments - None 

 
D. Staff Comments - None 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. October 3, 2013, Regular Planning Commission Meeting  
 
A motion to approve the Oct. 3, 2013, meeting minutes was made by Commissioner Ortiz and 
seconded by Commissioner Welch. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Ortiz and Welch and 
Chairperson Routh. No: None. Abstain: Commissioners Graves and Smith. 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
   

A. 1066 41st Avenue      #12-094           APN: 034-711-001, 002, and 003   

Master Sign Program for three commercial units in the PD (Planned 
Development) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Macquarie Capitola Villas, Inc., filed 7/18/12 
Representative: Steve Elmore       

A motion to approve project application #12-094 with the following conditions and findings 
was made by Commissioner Smith and seconded by Commissioner Ortiz: 
 
CONDITIONS  
1.  All signs shall comply with the Master Sign Program for 1066 41st Avenue. Individual sign permits 

may be issued by the Community Development Director or designee.  Applicants must obtain 
Community Development Department and Building Department approval of new signs prior to 
installation.   
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2013 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

-1-

Item #: 3.A. 11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Oct. 3, 2013  2 
 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\12-5-13\Word Doc\11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

2.  The applicant shall obtain a business license prior to operating the business. 
 
3.  Prior to granting of final occupancy for commercial units, compliance with all conditions of 

approval associated with the commercial units at 1066 41st Avenue shall be demonstrated to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

Planning Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the application and determined 
that the proposed Master Sign Program is allowed in the PD Zoning District and future sign 
applications will comply with the requirements of the Sign Ordinance.  Conditions of approval 
have been included to ensure that future signs for the commercial suites are consistent with 
the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project and 
determined that the master sign program complements the building form and established 
requirements for future signs that will maintain the character and integrity of this mixed use 
area within the City of Capitola. Conditions of approval have been included to carry out these 
objectives. 
 

C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
The proposed project involves signs for an existing commercial space. No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during project review by either the Planning 
Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 
 

The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Graves, Ortiz, Smith, and 
Welch and Chairperson Routh. No: None. Abstain: None. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  

A. 110 Lawn Way      #13-145      APN: 035-124-05   
Conceptual review for a second-story addition to a single-story home in the CV 
(Central Village) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Norma Kettmann 
Representative: Gary Lindeke, filed: 10/11/13   

 
Senior Planner Cattan presented the staff report and background on the conceptual review. She 
shared images of the property and the Lawn Way Historic District, noting it contains 22 units of which 
17 are contributory. The subject property is a cinderblock non-contributory home rebuilt in the 1960s 
to fire specifications after the original home was condemned. It has one story with a roof deck. 
 
The Central Village District Design Guidelines for Lawn Way specifically prohibit an increase in 
habitable area or additional stories, elements that are part of the remodel under consideration by the 
applicant. The initial proposal featured a full second-story addition, and an option of a story-and-a-half 

-2-

Item #: 3.A. 11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Oct. 3, 2013  3 
 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\12-5-13\Word Doc\11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

was also submitted to Architecture and Site Review. This option was favored by the committee’s 
historian, although she questioned the shed roof and deck.  
 
Staff confirmed for commissioners that the guidelines are referenced in the zoning ordinance. The 
guidelines will be made available online if not already. The conceptual review is for guidance only; no 
action is required. 
 
Chairperson Routh opened the public hearing and Gary Lindeke spoke for the applicant. He noted the 
property is unique in the Lawn Way district and that the home is not what the Kettmann family wanted 
to build when the original house was destroyed. The family still owns the property. He explained the 
Kettmanns hope to balance their desire for more space with a design complementing the historic 
style. 
 
There were no other comments and the public hearing was closed.  
 
Commissioner Graves said although he favors the second option over the existing home, he is 
concerned about ignoring the guidelines. Community Development Director Rich Grunow said the use 
of guidelines as opposed to ordinance process provides for some flexibility. 
 
Commissioners Ortiz and Smith both spoke to maintaining the character and integrity of the historic 
district and asked if there is a way to support this application without setting precedents that could 
ripple through other structures. Commissioner Ortiz suggested asking for guidance from the state on 
maintaining a historic district. Commissioner Graves felt this matter is better handled locally. 
 
Commissioner Welch noted the Village Guidelines include language acknowledging that some 
structures detract from the overall aesthetic and the City should take advantage of opportunities to 
improve these properties. He feels that directive could be applied to this project. 
 
Other discussion included whether the existing roof deck was considered habitable or usable space 
and could be used to support the requested changes. The impact of FEMA flood requirements, and 
whether historic or FEMA concerns take precedence, was also raised. Staff noted the wall height of 
the existing home creates a higher roofline than adjoining homes. Commissioners in general favored 
the story-and-a-half option, but would prefer gables and roofline running the same direction as 
adjoining properties. Commissioner Ortiz asked the commissioners if they could make findings unique 
to the property to allow for an exception to the guidelines.  No consensus of findings was made. They 
did not reach consensus on allowing cement fiber versus wood siding. 
  
6.  DICUSSION ITEMS 
  
 A. Review of Draft Conditions of Approval for Residential Projects 
 

Senior Planner Cattan presented the staff report. Commissioners supported the effort to be 
clear and specific, and offered the following:  

 

 In #2 clarify the interior modifications portion to reflect that only work requiring a permit is 
included. 

 Check the acronyms and perhaps clarify them for #4. 

 For #6, final landscape plans should be part of the Planning Commission approval process 
whenever possible. Also add “required” irrigation systems. 

 Add that landscaping must be installed or a bond posted prior to occupancy. 

 Perhaps replace or add to #17 the statement “All conditions of approval must be met 
before occupancy is granted.” 

-3-

Item #: 3.A. 11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – Oct. 3, 2013  4 
 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\12-5-13\Word Doc\11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.docx 

 For #13, add construction vehicles on the public street must abide by parking limits and 
should not remain for the duration of the project.  

 The Commission favors reviewing construction hours when code is updated (#14) and may 
also want to create different approval expiration times for residential and commercial 
projects (#18). 

 Secondary Dwelling unit 2C & D, change description to Design Permit. 

 In Secondary Dwelling unit, repeat #9 for water notification. 
 
7.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Staff took the question of sign code enforcement in the Central Village to the City Council on  
Oct. 24. Council elected to support complaint-based enforcement. 
 
The General Plan Advisory Committee meets Nov. 12 for comments on the draft. The Planning 
Commission will have a joint meeting with City Council on Nov. 21.  
 

8.  COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS  
 

A motion to appoint Commissioner Graves as the Planning Commission’s representative to 
the Traffic and Parking Commission was made by Commissioner Welch and seconded by 
Commissioner Ortiz. 
 
The motion carried by the following vote: Aye: Commissioners Ortiz, Smith, and Welch and 
Chairperson Routh. No: None. Abstain: Commissioner Graves 
 

9.  ADJOURNMENT 
The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:42 p.m. to a Special Joint Meeting of the 
City Council and Planning Commission to be held on Thursday, Nov. 21, 2013, at 6 p.m. in the 
City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on Dec. 5, 2013. 

 
 

________________________________ 
Linda Fridy, Minute Clerk 

-4-

Item #: 3.A. 11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 209 Fanmar Way #13-150  APN: 035-163-01 & 02 

Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit to remodel an existing single-family 
home in the CV (Central Village) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Vince and Sheryl Barabba 
Representative:  John Hofacre, Architect, filed:  10/24/2013 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted a Design Permit and a Coastal Development Permit for the property at 
209 Fanmar Way.  The project is located in the RM-LM (multi-family low density) zoning district.  A 
single-family home in the RM-LM zoning district is subject to the development standards of the R-1 
(Single Family) zoning district.  Currently, the property is utilized by the owner as an art studio.  The 
applicant would like to add a 1,136 square-foot addition onto the existing 837 square-foot structure to 
utilize the home as a primary residence.  Additions of more than four hundred square feet require 
approval of a Design Permit by the Planning Commission.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On November 13, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.   

• City Design Representative Derek Van Alstine requested that the applicant redesign the 
entryway of the home to better complement the shed roof on the existing structure.  The 
architect created several different entry designs for the owner.  After reviewing the options, the 
owners preferred the current design.  Their Architect, John Hofacre, submitted a letter 
explaining the preference for leaving the design as is.  (Attachment C)       

• City Landscape Architect representative Susan Suddjian approved of the submitted landscape 
plan and did not recommend any modifications. 

• City Public Works Director Steve Jesberg was unable to attend the meeting. 
• City Building Inspector Brian Von Son reviewed the plans and did not recommend any 

modifications.   
 
DISCUSSION 
The structure at 209 Fanmar Way was built in 1943.  Although it is over fifty years in age, it is not 
considered a historic structure.  The home is located just outside the Central Village District and not 
within a historic overlay district; therefore, the Central Village Design Guidelines do not apply to this 
application.   
 
The existing home at 209 Fanmar Way is 837 square feet within a two-story structure.  The applicant 
is proposing a single-story addition with 789 square feet of living space and 347 square feet for the 
single-car garage.  The floor area of the existing structure with new addition is 1,973 square feet.  

-5-

Item #: 4.A. 13-150 209 Fanmar Way.pdf



 

Within the R-1 District, a 4,075 square-foot lot is allowed a maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) of 53%.  
The FAR for the new home is 47.5%.   
 
Site and Structural Data 
The project conforms with all R-1 (single family) zoning district standards, as follows: 
 
Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
Lot Size 4,075 sq. ft. 
Maximum FAR Allowed 53% 2,159 sq. ft. 
Proposed FAR 47.5% 1,973 sq. ft. 
Proposed Square Footage 
Existing Floor Area    837 sq. ft. 
First Floor Addition    789 sq. ft.  

Total 1,626 sq. ft. 
New Garage    347 sq. ft. 

Floor Area 1,973 sq. ft. 
Set Backs on Corner Lot 
 R-1 District Proposed 
Front Yard 15’ 23’ 
Rear Yard = min side yard of 

adjacent lot (3’) but 
not less than 4’ 

5’ 

Side Yard 10’ on corner lot on 
side facing side 

street 

10’  

Building Height 
 R-1 District Proposed 
Residential 25'-0" 18’ 
Parking 
 Required Proposed 
Residential 
(2,001 sq. ft. – 
2,600 sq. ft.) 

2 spaces total 
Minimum 1 covered 
1 uncovered 

2 spaces total  
1 covered 
2 uncovered 

 
Setbacks 
The setbacks for the development are unique due to the triangular configuration of the lot.  The front 
of the home is on Fanmar Way and the side yard is located on Terrace Way.  The front yard setback 
in the R-1 District on the first floor is 15 feet. On a corner lot, the side yard setback on the street side 
is a minimum of ten feet (adjacent to the neighboring front yards); and the minimum rear yard is the 
minimum side yard of the adjacent property, but no less than four feet.  The new addition complies 
with a 15 foot front yard setback along Fanmar Way, a 10 foot side yard setback along Terrace Way, 
and a 5 foot rear yard setback along the adjacent property line.     
 
Parking 
The proposed 1,136 square-foot addition is greater than 10% of the gross floor area of the existing 
home (837 sq. ft.).  Per Capitola Municipal Code Section 17.15.130.A.9, “no additional square footage 
exceeding 10 percent of the existing gross floor area may be added to an existing single-family 
residential unit, unless minimum parking requirements are met.”  Two parking spaces are required for 
the 1,973 square-foot home, including 1 interior space and 1 exterior space.  The application complies 
with the parking requirements with 1 interior space provided in the new single-car garage and 1 
exterior parking space in a tandem configuration in the driveway.     
 

-6-

Item #: 4.A. 13-150 209 Fanmar Way.pdf



 

Landscaping 
The applicant has submitted a full landscape and irrigation plan. (Attachment B) The applicant will 
protect 4 of the 5 existing trees on site during construction, including: 1 lemon tree, 2 apple trees, and 
the large magnolia along Terrace Way.  One apple tree will be removed.  The large smoke bush on 
the corner will also remain.  A mix of bushes, perennials, and ground cover are proposed within the 
landscape plan.  A flagstone path set on sand will meanders around the periphery of the home.  A 
Japanese maple tree will be planted near the front entrance.  A drip irrigation system will be installed 
as outlined in the landscape submittal.      
 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures provided that the 
addition in under 10,000 square feet and not located in an environmentally sensitive area.  This 
project involves a 1,136 square-foot addition to an existing home located in the single family 
residential (R-1) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of 
the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #13-150 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 

 
1. The project approval consists of construction of a 1,136 square-foot addition to an existing 

single family home. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 4,075 square-foot property is 53% 
(2,159 square feet).  The total FAR of the home with new addition is 47.5% with a total of 
1,973 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed project is 
approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission 
on December 5, 2013, except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning 
Commission during the hearing. 

 
2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 

modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans 

 
3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 

full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM shall 
be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All construction shall 
be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
shall require Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by 
the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #13-150 shall be 
paid in full. 

-7-

Item #: 4.A. 13-150 209 Fanmar Way.pdf



 

 
8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable Housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to 

assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.   
 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Creek 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 

plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

 
11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 

plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 

 
12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 

verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 

 
14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 

except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of 9 p.m. and 7:30 a.m. on weekdays. Construction 
noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work between 9 a.m. 
and 4 p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 

 
15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 

shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 

 
16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 

be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 

 
17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 

approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

 
18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 

underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 

 

-8-

Item #: 4.A. 13-150 209 Fanmar Way.pdf



 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be placed out 
of public view on non-collection days.  

 
 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the addition to the single family home.  The 
project conforms to the development standards of the RM/LM (Multiple Family Low Density) 
and the R-1 (Single-Family) Zoning Districts.  Conditions of approval have been included to 
carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the addition to the single-family home.  The 
project conforms to the development standards of the RM/LM (Multiple Family/Low Density) 
and the R-1 (Single-Family) Zoning Districts.  Conditions of approval have been included to 
ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the neighborhood. The 
proposed addition to the single-family residence compliments the existing single-family homes 
in the neighborhood in use, mass and scale, materials, height, and architecture.   

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 This project involves an addition to an existing single-family residence in the RM/LM (Multiple-
Family /Low Density) zoning district, subject to the R-1 (Single-Family) zoning district 
standards.  Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures 
provided that the addition in under 10,000 square feet and not located in an environmentally 
sensitive area. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
B.  Landscape Plan 
C.  Letter from John Hofacre, Architect 

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  

Senior Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\12-5-13\13-150 209 Fanmar Way.pdf\x  

-9-

Item #: 4.A. 13-150 209 Fanmar Way.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-10-



-11-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



-12-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



-13-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment A. Plans.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-14-



-15-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment B. Landscape Plans.pdf



-16-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment B. Landscape Plans.pdf



-17-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment B. Landscape Plans.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-18-



-19-

Item #: 4.A. Attachment C. Letter John Hofacre.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-20-



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 141 Magellan Street  #13-153  APN: 036-192-20 

Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for remodel of existing single-family 
home in the R-1 (Single-Family) Zoning District.  

  Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
  Owner: Gene Benson 

Representative: Roy Horn, filed: 11/4/2013 
 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant has submitted a Design Permit application for a 541 square-foot addition to an existing 
single-family home located at 141 Magellan Street.  The project is located in the R-1 (Single-Family) 
zoning district. The applicant is proposing to convert the existing garage into living space, extend the 
rear wall of the home to accommodate a master bedroom, dining room, and fireplace, and add a new 
single car garage to the front façade of the home.  An addition to the front façade of a home requires 
approval of a Design Permit by the Planning Commission.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On November 13, 2013, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application.   
 

 City Design Representative, Derek Van Alstine, approved of the plans and did not recommend 
any modifications.  

 City Landscape Architect representative, Susan Suddjian, approved of the existing 
landscaping and did not recommend any modifications. 

 City Public Works Director, Steve Jesberg, was unable to attend the meeting. 

 City Building Inspector, Brian Von Son, approved of the plans and did not recommend any 
modifications.   

 
Site and Structural Data 
The project conforms with all R-1 (single family) zoning district standards, as follows: 
 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

Lot Size 6,000 sq. ft. 

Maximum FAR Allowed 49% 2,940 sq. ft. 

Proposed FAR 37% 2,223 sq. ft. 

Proposed Square Footage 

Existing House 1,235 sq. ft. 

Existing Garage    412 sq. ft.  

Area removed      35 sq. ft. 

Total Living Area 1,908 sq. ft. 

-21-

Item #: 4.B. 13-153 141 Magellan Street Staff Report.pdf



 

Total Garage     315 sq. ft. 

Floor Area 2,223 sq. ft. 

Set Back 

 R-1 District Proposed 

Front 15’ 23’ 

Front Garage 20’ 23’ 

Rear 20% depth of lot: 20’ 26’ 6” 

Side Yard 10% width of lot: 6’ 6’  

Building Height 

 R-1 District Proposed 

Residential 25'-0" 15’ 

Parking 

 Required Proposed 

Residential 
(2,001 sq. ft. – 
2,600 sq. ft.) 

3 spaces total 
Minimum 1 covered 
2 uncovered 

3 spaces total  
1 covered 
2 uncovered 

 
 
DISCUSSION 
The applicant is proposing an addition to the front and rear facades of the existing home.  The existing 
garage will be converted to living space and a new single car garage will be added in front of the 
existing garage.  The front yard setback for a garage in the R-1 District is 20 feet.  The new garage is 
setback 23 feet from the front property line.  On the back of the home, a 226 square foot addition will 
create more space within the master bedroom and dining room.  The rear addition complies with the 
rear and side yard setbacks.    
 
The existing siding is vertical re-sawn plywood boards with wood trim.  The applicant is proposing to 
remove the existing siding and introduce beveled lap siding within the gable ends and 3 coat stucco to 
the exterior walls.  Materials for the addition include a composite roof, wood garage door, and bronze 
colored aluminum windows throughout.  A new wood front door and sidelight will be visible adjacent to 
the new garage.     
 
Parking 
The proposed 541 square foot addition is greater than 10% of the gross floor area of the existing 
home (1,720 sq. ft.).  Per Capitola Municipal Code Section 17.15.130.A.9, “no additional square 
footage exceeding 10 percent of the existing gross floor area may be added to an existing single-
family residential unit, unless minimum parking requirements are met.”  Three parking spaces are 
required for the 2,322 square foot home, including 1 interior space and 2 exterior spaces.  Interior 
parking spaces are required to be a minimum of 10 feet wide by 20 feet deep.  The application 
complies with the parking requirements with 1 interior space provided in the new single car garage 
and 2 exterior parking spaces within the driveway.     
 
Landscaping 
The applicant is not proposing any new landscaping on the site.  There are established landscape 
beds with drip irrigation along the front and rear property lines.  Existing landscaping includes a mix of 
bamboo, agapanthus, abutilon, coreopsis, lavender, pitspori, and a rose bush.  The applicant plans to 
install an automated irrigation system for the lawn.    
 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures provided that the 
addition will not result in an increase of more than 50% of the existing structure or more than 2,500 
square feet, whichever is less. This project involves a 509 square foot addition to an existing home 

-22-

Item #: 4.B. 13-153 141 Magellan Street Staff Report.pdf



 

located in the single family residential (R-1) zoning district. No adverse environmental impacts were 
discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #13-153 based on the 
following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 

 

1. The project approval consists of construction of a 541 square-foot addition to an existing single 
family home. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 6,000 square foot property is 49% (2,940 
square feet).  The total FAR of the home with new addition is 37% with a total of 2,223 square 
feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed project is approved as 
indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on December 
5, 2013, except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during 
the hearing. 

 
2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 

modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be consistent 
with the plans approved by the Planning Commission.  All construction and site improvements 
shall be completed according to the approved plans 

 
3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be printed in 

full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM shall 
be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans.  All construction shall 
be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP STRM.   

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically requested 

and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department.  Any significant changes 
shall require Planning Commission approval.   
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a final landscape plan shall be submitted and approved by 
the Community Development Department.  Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning 
Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location of species and details of 
irrigation systems.   
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #13-153 shall be 
paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to 
assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.   

 
9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 

approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel Creek 
Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.   

 
10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion control 

plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works.  The plans shall be in 
compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16 Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

 

-23-

Item #: 4.B. 13-153 141 Magellan Street Staff Report.pdf



 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater management 
plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements all applicable Post 
Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard Details, including all standards 
relating to low impact development (LID). 

 
12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading official to 

verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired by 
the contractor performing the work.  No material or equipment storage may be placed in the 
road right-of-way. 

 
14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise curfew, 

except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City.  Construction noise 
shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty a.m. on weekdays. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the exception of Saturday work 
between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work approved by the building official. 
§9.12.010B 

 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or sidewalk 
shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction of the Public 
Works Department.  All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or sidewalk shall meet 
current Accessibility Standards. 

 

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall 
be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director.  Upon evidence 
of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions, the 
applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director or shall file an application for a permit amendment for Planning Commission 
consideration. Failure to remedy a non-compliance in a timely manner may result in permit 
revocation. 

 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance.   The applicant shall have an 
approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent permit 
expiration.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

 

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the applicant 
to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the site on which 
the approval was granted. 

 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be placed out 
of public view on non-collection days.  

 
 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the addition to the single family home.  The 
project conforms to the development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning 

-24-

Item #: 4.B. 13-153 141 Magellan Street Staff Report.pdf



 

Districts.  Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 

the Planning Commission have all reviewed the addition to the single family home.  The 
project conforms to the development standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning 
District.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the 
character and integrity of the neighborhood. The proposed addition to the single-family 
residence compliments the existing single-family homes in the neighborhood in use, mass and 
scale, materials, height, and architecture.   

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 This project involves an addition to an existing single-family residence in the R-1 (single family 

residence) Zoning District.  Section 15301 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor additions to 
existing single-family residences in a residential zone.   

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  

Senior Planner  
                  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\12-5-13\13-153 141 MagellanStreet.pdf\x  

-25-

Item #: 4.B. 13-153 141 Magellan Street Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-26-



-27-

Item
 #: 4.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s.p

d
f



-28-

Item
 #: 4.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s.p

d
f



-29-

Item
 #: 4.B

. A
ttach

m
en

t A
. P

lan
s.p

d
f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-30-



-31-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. Materials and Color Board.pdf



-32-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. Materials and Color Board.pdf



-33-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. Materials and Color Board.pdf



-34-

Item #: 4.B. Attachment B. Materials and Color Board.pdf



 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T 
 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 723 El Salto Drive #13-155  APN: 036-143-35 

Coastal Development Permit and Minor Land Division to create two lots of record, and 
request for a two-year extension to the previously approved Minor Land Division to 
convert four apartment units to condominiums in the R-1/VS (Single Family/Visitor 
Serving) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the 
California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the 
City. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Doug Dodds 
Representative:  Thacher & Thompson, filed:  11/5/2013 
 

APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is requesting approval of a Coastal Development Permit and Minor Land Division to 
create two lots of record at 723 El Salto Drive in the R-1/VS (Single Family/Visitor Serving) zoning 
district.  The existing parcel contains a 4-unit apartment building, a single-family house, and a carport.  
The applicant is also requesting a two-year extension for the previously approved tentative map 
(application #10-082) to convert four apartment units into condominium units.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On February 4, 2010, the Planning Commission approved a Coastal Permit and a two-lot Minor Land 
Division at 723 El Salto Drive (Application 08-041).  The approved Minor Land Division allowed the 
35,809 square-foot property to be divided into two lots: a 5,850 square-foot lot for the existing single-
family home and a 29,959 square-foot lot for the four-unit apartment building.  Within the prior 
approval, the existing carport structure was required to be demolished and a new 4-car carport 
constructed within the established landscape area in front of the 4-unit apartment building. On March 
1, 2012, the Planning Commission granted a one-year extension of the two-lot minor land division (08-
041).  That application expired on March 1, 2013.  The current application is a variation of the expired 
two-lot minor land division application.     
 
The Planning Commission had concurrently reviewed a second Minor Land Division application (10-
082) to convert the four-unit apartment within Parcel B to individual condominium units.  The Planning 
Commission approved the Minor Land Division application on January 20, 2011, and a one-year 
extension of the application on January 17, 2013.  The applicant is seeking approval of a second 
extension for application 10-082.     
 
  

-35-

Item #: 4.C. 13-155 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



 

On November 13, 2013, the Architectural and Site Committee reviewed the application: 
• City Design Representative Derek Van Alstine complimented the modification to preserve the 

established landscaping and did not ask for any modifications. 
• Historic Preservation Representative Carolyn Swift was unable to attend the meeting.  She 

asked staff that the applicant submit additional information regarding the history of the single-
family home onsite.  The applicant submitted a brief narrative on the history of the single-
family home.      

• City Landscape Architect representative Susan Suddjian complimented the modification to the 
layout to preserve the existing landscaping and did not request any modifications.   

• City Building Inspector Brian Von Son did not request any modifications.   
• City Public Works Director Steve Jesberg was unable to attend the meeting.  

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Two Lot Minor Land Division 
The applicant modified the layout of the lot boundaries to preserve the established landscaping in 
front of the four-unit apartment and rebuild the required carport within the same general area as it 
exists today (shifted 8 feet to the east).  To do so, the minor land division establishes a flag lot for 
Parcel A which will accommodate a 60 foot long driveway leading to the single-family home.  Parcel A 
is 6,480 square feet.  Parcel B is 28,959 square feet, including the 2,038 square-foot view easement 
and the 10,043 square-foot unbuildable bluff area.  The existing four-unit apartment and the future 
carport will be located within Parcel B.      
 
Within a minor land division application, new lots must comply with Section 16.24.170(A-G) of the 
Municipal Code as follows: 
 
A. The size and shape of lots shall be in conformance to any zoning regulations effective in the area 

of the proposed subdivision.   
The subdivision is located in the VS/R-1 dual zoning district.  Dual zoning means that the uses 
and development standards of the V-S district apply, although uses allowed by the other district 
may also be permitted through approval of a conditional use permit, and the Planning Commission 
may apply development standards from the other zoning district in lieu of or as well as the V-S 
district, as determined through architectural and site review.   
 
Per 17.30.090, the minimum lot area requirement for the VS district is 5,000 square feet.  Both lots 
comply with the minimum required lot size of 5,000 square feet.  The VS district specifies that a 
single-family home must be consistent with the development standards of the R-1 zoning district 
and a multi-family must be consistent with the RM-LM standards.  The R-1 zoning district lot area 
is a minimum of 5,000 square feet and allows one unit per lot.  The RM-LM zoning district requires 
4,400 square feet per dwelling unit.   

 
While the single-family house is currently legal nonconforming in regards to setbacks, the 
Subdivision Map Act permits the structure to remain nonconforming as part of the subdivision 
approval.  Any future development on the site will be required to come into conformance with 
current design and development standards.  There is not new non-conformity or increase of an 
existing non-conform caused by this application.    
 

B. The side lines of all lots, so far as possible, shall be at right angles to the street which the lot 
faces, or radial or approximately radial if the street is curved. 
The access to the lot is at a right angle to the street but does not include the entire side line of the 
lot.  The applicant is proposing a flag lot to preserve the landscaping in front of the 4-plex and 
rebuild the carport in close proximity to the existing location.     

   

-36-

Item #: 4.C. 13-155 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



 

C. The planning commission may require that building set back lines shall be indicated by dotted 
lines on the subdivision map.  
The applicant has not included building set back lines on the subdivision map; however, adequate 
setbacks can be provided through the proposed lot design.    
 

D. No lot shall be divided by a city boundary line. 
The parcel is entirely within the City boundary. 
 

E. Lots without frontage on a dedicated public street of twenty feet or more will not be permitted.  
All lots would provide frontage to a dedicated public street of twenty feet or more. 
 

F. Lots other than corner lots may front on more than one street where necessitated by topographic 
or other unusual conditions.   
Not applicable.  
 

G. In riparian corridors no lots may be created which do not contain adequate building area outside 
the riparian or stream setback.     
Not applicable. 

 
Parking 
The single-family residential use on Parcel 1 complies with the parking requirement of two off-street 
parking spaces.  The four-unit apartment on Parcel 2 will comply with the parking requirement of one 
covered space for each unit, plus one and one-half additional spaces on the site for each dwelling 
once the new carport is constructed.  Each unit will have one covered space within the carport and 
one tandem assigned uncovered space.  In addition, two guest spaces will be provided to meet the 
requirement.  
 
Street Improvements 
The site is located in a curb, gutter, and sidewalk exempt area.  Therefore, street improvements will 
not be required as part of the subdivision.  
 
Future Development Potential 
Per the current VS/R-1 zoning designation, the single-family house on Parcel 1 is a permitted use.  A 
change in use could be proposed within the VS overlay district to a range of visitor serving uses.  Any 
future change in use would require approval of a conditional use permit by the Planning Commission.   
However, with the proposed lot size (5,850 square feet) it is likely that only a single-family use would 
be appropriate.  Also, any expansion of the existing single-family home or change of use would 
require additional historic research completed by a specialist to identify if the home is a historic 
resource.   
 
Duration of Approval 
Per the Subdivision Map Act Section 66452.6.a.1, a conditionally approved tentative map shall expire 
24 months after approval or conditional approval.  If approved, the tentative map shall expire on 
December 5, 2015.   
 
Extension of Minor Land Division of 4-unit Apartment  
The approved tentative map for the four-unit apartment into condominium units (application 10-082) 
will expire January 20, 2014.  Per Section 66452.6e of the Subdivision Map Act, a conditionally 
approved tentative map may be extended up to a period or periods not exceeding six years.  Both the 
Capitola Municipal Code Section 17.81.160 and Coastal Zone Ordinance Section 17.46.120 state that 
a request for an extension may be granted upon a finding that no relevant substantial change of 
circumstances, regulations or planning policies has occurred and that such extension would not be 
detrimental to the purpose of the certified local coastal program and zoning ordinance.  Since neither 

-37-

Item #: 4.C. 13-155 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



 

the physical characteristics of the lot nor the zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the 
permit, staff supports the request for an extension. 
 
Staff suggests that the Planning Commission consider a two-year extension of Application 10-082 
through December 5, 2015.    
 
CEQA REVIEW 
Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts Minor Land Divisions in urbanized areas zoned for 
residential use into four or fewer parcels when the division is in conformance with the General Plan 
and zoning, no variances or exceptions are required, all services and access to the proposed parcels 
to local standards are available, the parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within the 
previous 2 years, and the parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent. This project 
involves a two lot Minor Land Division that is in compliance with zoning and the General Plan.  No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve project application #13-155 and a two-year 
extension of application #10-082 based on the following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The project consists of the subdivision of a 35,439 square-foot lot into two residential lots in 

the VS/R-1 (Visitor Serving/Single-Family Residence) Zoning at 723 El Salto Drive.  The 
application proposes to create two lots.  Parcel A is a 6,480 square-foot flag lot which will 
include the single-family house.  Parcel B is a 28,959 square-foot lot containing the existing 
four-unit apartment building.  The single-family house will remain in its current location.  The 
existing carport structure will be demolished and a new 4-car carport constructed near the 
existing location yet entirely within Parcel B.  
 

2. The applicant has also requested an extension of the approved tentative map for the four-unit 
apartment into condominium units (application 10-082) that will expire on January 20, 2014.  
No relevant substantial change of circumstances, regulations or planning policies has occurred 
since the original approval and such extension would not be detrimental to the purpose of the 
certified local coastal program and zoning ordinance.  With the two-year extension, the final 
map for the four-unit condominium must be recorded prior to December 5, 2015.  
 

3. No structures will be developed within the view easement of Parcel B. 
 
4. No existing trees are permitted to be removed within this application.    

 
5. Prior to issuance of a building permit, a Coastal Permit and Design Permit for a new carport 

constructed entirely within the boundary of Parcel B must be approved by the Planning 
Commission.   
 

6. Prior to recordation of final map, a new 4-car carport must be constructed entirely within the 
boundary of Parcel B.  Onsite improvements must be completed to the satisfaction of the 
Community Development Director.   
 

7. Prior to the recordation of final map, the applicant shall submit new legal descriptions for the 
two lots for review by the Community Development Department. 

 

-38-

Item #: 4.C. 13-155 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



 

8. Prior to recordation of final map, all utility easements shall be provided on the parcel map in a 
configuration which meets the requirements of the utility companies and the City of Capitola 
Public Works Director. 

 
9. Prior to recordation of final map, the owner shall contact the Capitola U.S. Postmaster to 

locate in the subdivision placement of “Neighborhood Delivery and Collection Boxes 
(NDCBU’s).  Any required easements shall be dedicated and shown on the parcel map within 
a public utility easement, as approved by City Staff and the Postmaster. 

 
10. Prior to the recordation of final map, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development Director. 
 

11. Prior to recordation of final map, all Planning fees associated with permit #13-155 shall be paid 
in full. 

 
12. The tentative map for the two-lot minor land division and extension of the minor land division 

for the four-unit apartment into condominiums shall expire 24 months from the date of 
approval.   Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to expiration 
pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
project.  The minor land division, together with the provisions for its design and improvement, 
is consistent with the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local Coastal 
Plan. 

 
B.  The application is consistent with the Subdivision Map Act and local Subdivision 

Ordinance. 
 

The minor land division was designed in accordance with the Subdivision Map Act and local 
ordinances enacted pursuant thereto.  Per the Subdivision Map Act, the proposed map is 
consistent with the General Plan and Local Coastal Plan, is physically suited for the proposed 
type and density of development, will not likely cause substantial environmental damage, or 
substantially and avoidably injure fish, wildlife or their habitats, will not cause serious public 
health problems, and will not conflict with public easements for access through, or use of, 
property within the proposed subdivision. 
 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15315 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 Section 15315 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts minor land divisions in urbanized areas 

zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use into four or fewer parcels when the division 
is in conformance with the General Plan and Zoning.  

 
 
D.  A substantial change of circumstances has not occurred since the original Planning 

Commission approval of application 10-082 on January 20, 2011. A second extension of 

-39-

Item #: 4.C. 13-155 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



 

the permit to December 5, 2015, would not be detrimental to the purpose of the certified 
local coastal program and zoning ordinance. 

 
The Planning Commission finds that neither the physical characteristics of the lot nor the 
zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the permit on January 20, 2011. Therefore, a 
second extension of said permit is appropriate. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Minor Land Division Tentative Map 
B.  Letter from Applicant  
C.  2011 Approved Tentative Map of 4-unit Apartment 
D.  Coastal Findings 
  

 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  

Senior Planner  
                  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\12-5-13\13-155 723 El Salto Drive .pdf\x  

-40-

Item #: 4.C. 13-155 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



D
O

D
D

S R
ESID

EN
C

E -  723 EL SA
LT

O
 D

R
IV

E, C
A

PIT
O

LA
, C

A
 95010 - C

A
R

PO
R

T
 A

N
D

 PA
R

K
IN

G

T
H

A
C

H
ER

 &
 T

H
O

M
PSO

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T

S

N
O

V
EM

BER
 20, 2013

A
PN

: 036-143-35

PR
O

PER
T

Y
 O

W
N

ER
:          D

O
U

G
LA

S D
O

D
D

S
P.O

. BO
X

 510

C
A

PIT
O

LA
, C

A
 95010

PR
O

JEC
T

 A
D

D
R

ESS:
723 EL SA

LT
O

 D
R

IV
E

036 - 143 - 35
A

PN
:

V
S - R

 - 1, C
O

A
ST

A
L Z

O
N

E
Z

O
N

E D
IST

R
IC

T
:

T
H

A
C

H
ER

 &
 T

H
O

M
PSO

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T

S
A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T

:

877 C
ED

A
R

 ST
R

EET

SA
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z

, C
A

 95060

(831) 457-3939

SU
R

V
EY

O
R

:
BO

W
M

A
N

 &
 W

ILLIA
M

S

1011 C
ED

A
R

 ST
R

EET

SA
N

T
A

 C
R

U
Z

, C
A

 95060

(831) 426-3560

-41-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment A. Tenative Map.pdf



D
O

D
D

S R
ESID

EN
C

E -  723 EL SA
LT

O
 D

R
IV

E, C
A

PIT
O

LA
, C

A
 95010 - C

A
R

PO
R

T
 A

N
D

 PA
R

K
IN

G

T
H

A
C

H
ER

 &
 T

H
O

M
PSO

N
 A

R
C

H
IT

EC
T

S

N
O

V
EM

BER
 20, 2013

PROPOSED PROPERTY LINE

EX
IST

IN
G

 SIT
E PLA

N
1

SC
A

LE: 1"= 20'

PR
O

PO
SED

 SIT
E PLA

N
2

SC
A

LE: 1"= 20'

A
PN

: 036-143-35
60' - 0"

-42-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment A. Tenative Map.pdf



-43-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment B. Letter from Mr. Dodds.pdf



-44-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment B. Letter from Mr. Dodds.pdf



-45-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment B. Letter from Mr. Dodds.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-46-



-47-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-48-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-49-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-50-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-51-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-52-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-53-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-54-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-55-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-56-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-57-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-58-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



-59-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-60-



COASTAL FINDINGS 
 

D. Findings Required. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific 
written factual findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development 
conforms to the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
 

• The proposed minor land division conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan 
(LCP). The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090 (D) are as follows:  

 
(D) (2) Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 
access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate and 
document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D) (2) (a) through (e), 
to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the conclusions and 
decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial evidence in the record. If an 
access dedication is required as a condition of approval, the findings shall explain how 
the adverse effects which have been identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the 
dedication. As used in this section, “cumulative effect” means the effect of the 
individual project in combination with the effects of past projects, other current 
projects, and probable future projects, including development allowed under applicable 
planning and zoning. 

 
(D) (2) (a) Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of 
existing and open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the 
regional and local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon 
existing public access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s 
cumulative effects upon the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation 
opportunities, including public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity 
of major coastal roads from subdivision, intensification or cumulative build-out. 
Projection for the anticipated demand and need for increased coastal access and 
recreation opportunities for the public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s 
cumulative effects to any such projected increase. Description of the physical 
characteristics of the site and its proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland 
recreation areas, and trail linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the 
importance and potential of the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for 
creating, preserving or enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation 
opportunities;  
 
• The project will not directly affect public access and coastal recreation areas as it involves 

the minor land division of a privately owned residential property with no intensification or 
build out and no public trail or beach access. 
 

(D) (2) (b) Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, 
including beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or 
accretion, character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of 
shoreline protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season 
when the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description and 
analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and cumulative 
effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in the vicinity of 
the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility and usability of 

-61-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment D Coastal Findings.pdf



 

the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect beaches in the vicinity. 
Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, alone or in combination 
with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of the public to use public 
tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 
 

• The project is located atop a bluff along the shoreline, with no beach access.  The 
approval of the minor land division will not affect any portions of the lot adjacent to the 
bluff, nor impact the character of the beach below.  Minor improvements are limited to 
the areas near El Salto Drive. 

 
(D) (2) (c) Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general 
public for a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the 
type and character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for 
passive and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) 
who has maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the 
nature of the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the 
record owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner 
to prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use);  
 

• The privately owned site has historically been used as private residences.  There is no 
evidence of use of the site by members of the public for coastal access. 

(D)  (2) (d) Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the 
development which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the 
shoreline; 

• The project is located atop a bluff along the shoreline.  The tall bluff does not allow for 
beach access.  Beach access to the public will not be affected by the project, nor will 
the development block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
 (D) (2) (e) Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the 
development’s physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public 
recreation area. Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other 
aspects of the development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the 
public’s use of tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any 
alteration of the aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any 
diminution of the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be 
attributable to the individual or cumulative effects of the development.    
 

• The site is located atop a bluff along the shoreline, but not in the vicinity of a public 
recreation area.  The minor land division does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands 
or lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual or recreational 
value of public use areas. 
 

 (D) (3) (a – c) Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that 
one of the exceptions of subsection (F) (2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the following: 

-62-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment D Coastal Findings.pdf



 

a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, lateral, 
bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be protected, 
the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which is the basis 
for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, 
intensity, hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile 
coastal resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area 
of public tidelands as would be made accessible by an access way on the subject land. 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings do 
not apply 

(D) (4) (a – f) Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 
condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or character 
of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 

a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 
supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 

 c. Recreational needs of the public; 

 d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the 
project back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is 
the mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as 
part of a management plan to regulate public use. 

• No Management Plan is required; therefore these findings do not apply 
 

(D) (5)  Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 
appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and as, 
required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 
 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights  are required for the proposed 
project 

  
(D) (6) Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies;  

 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational facilities 
designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall have priority over 

-63-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment D Coastal Findings.pdf



 

private residential, general industrial, or general commercial development, but not over 
agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

• The project involves the minor land division of an existing residential use.  No new use 
or change in use is proposed. 

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for such 
uses, where feasible. 

• The project involves the minor land division of an existing residential use.  No new use 
or change in use is proposed. 

SEC.  30250 
 

c)  Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed areas shall be 
located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of attraction for visitors. 

 
• The project involves the minor land division of an existing residential use.  No new use 

or change in use is proposed. 
(D) (7)  Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation and/or 
traffic improvements; 
 

• The project meets zoning standards for required parking and pedestrian access.  There 
are no requirements for alternate means of transportation or traffic improvements as 
part of the minor land division. 

 
 

(D) (8)  Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 
city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted design 
guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 
 
• The project was reviewed by the Architectural and Site Review Committee and complies 

with the design guidelines and standards for the VS/R-1 zoning district, as well as the 
recommendations provided by the Committee.   

  
(D) (9) Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 
protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public views 
to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 
• No public landmarks or public views to and along the shoreline are affected by the project.  

 
(D) (10) Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 
 
• The minor land division does not include any additional units, and therefore does not 

require new water or sewer services. 
 

(D) (11) Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times;  
 
• The minor land division does not include any additional units, and therefore does not 

require new flow rates or fire response times. 
 
(D) (12) Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 
 

-64-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment D Coastal Findings.pdf



 

• The project will be required to comply with water and energy conservation standards for 
the proposed carport as part of the building plan check process. 
 
(D) (13) Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required;  
 
• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 
(D) (14) Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 
• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes.  The existing residential 

units on the property will not be changes as part of the minor land division. 
 
(D) (15) Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies;  
 
• The minor land division does not impact natural resources, habitat, or archaeological 
resources. 
 
(D) (16) Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 
• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where Monarch 

Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 
 

(D) (17) Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 
stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 
• The project will comply with all applicable erosion control measures. 
 
(D) (18) Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 
projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and project 
complies with hazard protection policies including provision of appropriate setbacks 
and mitigation measures; 
 
• The project is not located within a geologically unstable area.  The minor land division does 

not involve any development near the coastal bluff portion of the parcel.  
 
(D) (19) All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in 
the project design; 
 
• The project is not located within a geologically unstable area nor flood plain, and fire 

hazard are accounted for and will be mitigated in the project design. 
   
(D) (20) Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 
  
• The proposed carport will comply with shoreline structure policies as part of the building 

plan check process. 
 
(D) (21) The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 
 
• The residential uses that exist are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses in the 

-65-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment D Coastal Findings.pdf



 

VS/R-1 zoning district. 
 
(D) (22) Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project review procedures; 
 
• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements and 

project development review and development procedures. 
 
(D) (23) Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows:  
 
• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit program. 

 
 

-66-

Item #: 4.C. Attachment D Coastal Findings.pdf



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 904 SIR FRANCIS AVENUE  #13-166  APN: 036-222-07 

Request for a one-year extension to a previously approved Coastal Development 
Permit and Architectural and Site Review for the remodel of an existing single-
family residence and construction of a new second story in the R-1 (Single-
Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 

  Property Owner:  Justin and Lisa Maffia 
 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
The applicant is requesting a sixth, one-year extension of a previously approved Coastal Permit 
and Architectural and Site Review Permit for the remodel of an existing one-story single-family 
residence and a second story addition at 904 Sir Francis Drive in the R-1 (Single Family 
Residence) zoning district.  The proposed use remains consistent with the General Plan, Zoning 
Ordinance, and Local Coastal Plan. 
   
BACKGROUND 
On December 7, 2006, the Planning Commission approved the above-mentioned application 
#06-061 (Attachment B).  The Planning Commission granted a one-year permit extension on 
October 16, 2008, December 2, 2009, November 18, 2010, December 1, 2011, and December 
6, 2012. 
  
DISCUSSION 
Pursuant to the Capitola Municipal Code Section 17.63.130, approvals of the Planning 
Commission are valid for two years. The building permit has not been issued, therefore the 
applicant has submitted for an extension of the permit. The extension request letter is attached 
(Attachment A).  
 
Since the Planning Commission originally approved the permit, they have the power to grant, 
“one or more extensions, each of which shall be for one year.” Both Section 17.81.160 and 
Coastal Zone Ordinance Section 17.46.120 state that a request for an extension may be 
granted upon a finding that no relevant substantial change of circumstances, regulations or 
planning policies has occurred and that such extension would not be detrimental to the purpose 
of the certified local coastal program and zoning ordinance.  Since neither the physical 
characteristics of the lot nor the zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the permit, 
staff supports the sixth request for a one-year extension. 
 
It should be noted that while the Planning Commission has the power to approve or deny 
extensions, it has no power to exact conditions unless codes and circumstances have changed. 
Conditions can be added, but only if agreed upon by the applicant. 

-67-

Item #: 4.D. 904 Sir Francis Avenue Extension CUP Final.pdf



  
 

 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Planning Commission approve the request for a one-year 
extension, subject to the following finding. If approved, this finding is in addition to the findings 
made for the original permit: 
 
A. A substantial change of circumstances has not occurred since Planning 

Commission approval of the permit on December 7, 2006. An additional one-year 
extension of the permit to December 5, 2014, would not be detrimental to the 
purpose of the certified local coastal program and zoning ordinance. 

 
The Planning Commission finds that neither the physical characteristics of the lot nor the 
zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the permit on December 7, 2006. 
Therefore, (a sixth) one-year extension (to December 5, 2014) of said permit is 
appropriate. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Request for extension letter from Lisa & Justin Maffia, dated November 6, 2013 
B.  December 7, 2006 Staff Report, Project Plans and Planning Commission Minutes 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan 
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
P:\Planning Commission\2012 Meeting Packets\12-6-12\Word Docs\904 Sir Francis Avenue staff report.docx 

-68-

Item #: 4.D. 904 Sir Francis Avenue Extension CUP Final.pdf



-69-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment A.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-70-



-71-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-72-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-73-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-74-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-75-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-76-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-77-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-78-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-79-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-80-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-81-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-82-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



-83-

Item #: 4.D. Attachment B.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-84-



 

 

 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  December 5, 2013  
 
SUBJECT: 2178 41ST AVENUE                       #12-080                             APN 034-221-02 

Modification to Design Permit and a Conditional Use Permit to incorporate a 
carwash into the recently approved commercial retail building (7-Eleven) in the 
CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.   

  Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
  Property Owner:  Ed Hadad, filed: 3/28/13 
  Representative:  Joe Nguyen, ASI Consulting 
 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing a modification to the recently approved Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP) to add a carwash to the future 7-Eleven at 2178 41st Avenue in the CC (Community 
Commercial) zoning district.  The original CUP, approved on December 6, 2012, included the 
demolition of the existing Coast retail building and construction of a new 2,940 square foot retail 
building while keeping the existing gas station.   
 
BACKGROUND 
On December 6, 2012, the Planning Commission approved a Design Permit and CUP to 
demolish the existing Coast retail building and construct a new commercial retail building (7-
Eleven).  During Planning Commission review of the application, the Commissioners expressed 
concern for the impact of business activities, deliveries, lighting, and construction on the 
adjacent residential neighborhood to the east along Derby Avenue.  The Planning Commission 
imposed additional conditions to mitigate impacts on the adjacent residences, including limiting 
deliveries to the front of the building during the hours of 8 am – 8 pm and requiring that the 
concrete block wall be constructed as part of the initial construction phase, prior to framing.   
The following conditions were required by the Planning Commission: 
 
18. Deliveries shall be limited to the front of the building, and will not be permitted to the back 

door.  Delivery hours shall be limited to 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m., seven days a week. 
  
19. A 6’ high concrete block wall (measured from project finished grade) will be constructed 

along the eastern property line adjacent to residential properties.  The wall shall be erected 
as part of the initial construction in order to shield the residences from construction noise.  
The wall must be completed prior to commencing framing of the new building. 

 
DISCUSSION 
On March 28, 2013, the applicant submitted an amendment to the approved Design Permit and 
CUP to add a carwash to the site plan. The proposed carwash is 720 square feet.  It is located 
on the north side of the commercial building.  The entrance for the carwash is on the rear of the 

-85-

Item #: 5. 41st Ave 2178 7 Eleven Carwash 10-3-2013 PC.pdf



  
 

 

 

building, adjacent to neighboring residential uses.  Cars would circulate around the back of the 
building to enter the carwash and exit out the front of the building facing 41st Avenue.   
 
Design 
Exterior materials would match the approved new commercial building with stucco finish over 
cement plaster located over a 3 foot high cultural stone wainscot. Stucco embossed aluminum 
bifold doors would be located at the entrance and exit of the carwash.   
 
Land Use Compatibility Issues 
Carwashes possess use characteristics which are typically considered incompatible in 
residential zones and conditionally compatible in commercial zones depending on the nature of 
the existing adjacent land uses.  Carwashes are often the subject of complaints from nearby 
residents due to operational noise from mechanical equipment and automatic dryers, nuisance 
noise from loud exhaust and car stereos, and fumes/odors from queuing automobiles. 
 
As previously noted, the proposed carwash is located in a commercial zone adjacent to an 
established residential neighborhood. There are two residential homes within 100 feet of the 
proposed carwash.  The residence at 2224 Derby Avenue is approximately 92 feet from the 
carwash entrance and 2217 Derby Avenue is less than 80 feet from the carwash entrance.    
Accordingly, staff has had ongoing concerns with the proposed location and its appropriateness 
to host a use which is known to create land use compatibility conflicts. 
 
The General Plan identifies noise levels between 50 – 60 Ldn or CNEL,dB to be normally 
acceptable within a  residential single-family neighborhood.  The term “normally acceptable” is 
defined as satisfactory, based upon the assumption that any buildings involved are of normal 
conventional construction, without any special noise insulation requirements.  Noise levels 
between 60 -70 Ldn or CNEL,db are conditionally acceptable in a residential single-family 
neighborhood.  “Conditionally acceptable” is defined as development that should be undertake 
only after a detailed analysis of noise reduction requirements is made and needed noise 
insulation features included in the design.  There are both internal and external noises caused 
by a carwash.  The mechanics of the washing system and blowers for drying create significant 
sound.  Also, the cars queuing to utilize the carwash add noise from the running motor and the 
car stereo system.      
 
At time of submittal, staff deemed the application incomplete and required that a noise study be 
completed to evaluate the impact on adjacent residential and commercial neighbors.  The 
applicant subsequently submitted a noise study prepared by Mei Wu Acoustics.  The study 
found that the predicted level of noise experienced by the adjacent residential property from the 
carwash without mitigation would be 66 dBA.  In order to reduce the carwash noise level to 50 
dBA or less, the original study recommended increasing the new CMU wall from 6 feet to 10 
feet and limiting the hours of operation from 7:00 am to 7:00 pm year round.   
 
Based on feedback from staff, the applicant submitted a revised noise study on November 5, 
2013, which proposed new mitigation to decrease noise from the source (Exhibit B).  The noise 
study evaluated the carwash with the added RYKO Bifold carwash doors and Protovest 
Windshear Dryer Silencers. The updated study concluded that the noise level measured within 
the adjacent residential property would be 49.5 dBA and not increase from existing noise levels 
(53.4 dBA) due to the incorporation of the carwash doors and silencer package into the carwash 
design.   
 

-86-

Item #: 5. 41st Ave 2178 7 Eleven Carwash 10-3-2013 PC.pdf



  
 

 

 

Following review of the updated noise study, staff informed the applicant that a technical review 
by a third-party noise specialist would be necessary prior to staff accepting the study as 
complete.  The applicant declined to cooperate in a third party technical review, citing time and 
cost concerns.  Staff notified the applicant that a positive recommendation could not be provided 
without verification of the study’s findings and conclusions from a third party technical expert. 
 
Conditional Use Permit Considerations 
Section 17.60.030 outlines the considerations in the review of a Conditional Use Permit 
application.  The following underlined considerations are applicable to the current application 
and must be reviewed by the Planning Commission prior to approval of a CUP.  
 

A.  In considering an application for a conditional use, the Planning Commission shall give due 
regard to the nature and condition of all adjacent uses and structures. In issuing a conditional 
use permit, the commission may impose requirements and conditions with respect to location, 
design, siting, maintenance and operation of the use in addition to those expressly provided in 
this chapter for the particular use, as may be necessary for the protection of the adjacent 
properties and in the public interest. 
 
B. In approving a use permit, the commission may include such conditions as the commission 
deems reasonable and necessary under the circumstances to preserve the integrity and 
character of the district and to secure the general purposes of this title, the general plan, and the 
local coastal program. Such conditions, without limiting the discretion and authority of the 
commission, may include time limitations, further architectural and site review, street dedication, 
and street and drainage improvements. 
 
The City of Capitola General Plan includes a noise element with specific goals and policies.  
The general plan states that” the overall goal of the Capitola Community is to preserve the quiet 
that exists in the City”.  Goal 2 of the Noise Element is “Ensure that land uses and the noise 
environment are compatible.” 
   
Staff continues to have concerns for the impacts of the proposed land use on the adjacent 
residential neighborhood.  With two single-family homes within 100 feet of the carwash and over 
a dozen properties within 300 feet of the property line, the carwash will likely diminish the 
resident’s quality of life and quiet enjoyment of their personal property.  During the initial review 
of the new convenient store at the location, the Planning Commisison expressed concern for the 
impacts of deliveries to the commercial site on the adjacent residential properties and 
appropriately conditioned deliveries to the front of the building.  Introduction of a  carwash would 
direct cars toward the rear of the property and increase the adverse impacts of the commercial 
property on the adjacent residences.  Without a 3rd party review of the noise study, staff cannot 
make an informed recommendation to the Planning Commission that the intrest of the adjacent 
properties has been protected.  Consequently, staff recommends denial of the of the carwash 
application to prevent nuisance effects to adjacent residential property owners. 
 
CEQA REVIEW 
CEQA Guidelines section 15270(a) exempts projects which are rejected or disapproved.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the proposed modifications within project 
application #13-041 based on the following findings: 
 
  

-87-

Item #: 5. 41st Ave 2178 7 Eleven Carwash 10-3-2013 PC.pdf



  
 

 

 

FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will not secure the purposes 

of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review 
Committee, and the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project 
does not conform with the conditional use permit considerations of the Zoning Ordinance 
due to the impacts of a carwash of operational noise from mechanical equipment and 
automatic dryers, nuisance noise from loud exhaust and car stereos, and fumes/odors 
from queuing automobiles on the existing adjacent residential neighborhood.    

 
B. The application will not maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 

Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The carwash is located in a 
commercial district that is adjacent to an existing residential neighborhood.  The 
proposed carwash has compatibility issues that threaten the character and integrity of 
the existing residential neighborhood due to operational noise from mechanical 
equipment and automatic dryers, nuisance noise from loud exhaust and car stereos, and 
fumes/odors from queuing automobiles.   

 
C. This project is statutorily exempt under Section 15270(a) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Project Plans 
B.  Noise Study  
C.  Carwash Tech Information 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan 
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Current Planning\REPORTS\Commercial\2178 41

st
 Ave 12-5-12 PC.docx 

-88-

Item #: 5. 41st Ave 2178 7 Eleven Carwash 10-3-2013 PC.pdf



-89-

Item
 #: 5. A

ttach
m

en
t A

. P
lan

.p
d

f



-90-

Item
 #: 5. A

ttach
m

en
t A

. P
lan

.p
d

f



-91-

Item
 #: 5. A

ttach
m

en
t A

. P
lan

.p
d

f



-92-

Item
 #: 5. A

ttach
m

en
t A

. P
lan

.p
d

f



-93-

Item
 #: 5. A

ttach
m

en
t A

. P
lan

.p
d

f



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-94-



-95-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-96-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-97-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-98-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-99-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-100-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-101-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-102-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-103-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-104-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-105-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-106-

Item #: 5. Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf



-107-

Item #: 5. Attachment C. Carwash Tech Info.pdf



-108-

Item #: 5. Attachment C. Carwash Tech Info.pdf



-109-

Item #: 5. Attachment C. Carwash Tech Info.pdf



-110-

Item #: 5. Attachment C. Carwash Tech Info.pdf



-111-

Item #: 5. Attachment C. Carwash Tech Info.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-112-



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  DECEMBER 5, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 115 San Jose Avenue #13-160  APN: 035-221-17 

Conditional Use Permit for outdoor seating and an outdoor ATM in the CV 
(Central Village) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Owner:  Capitola Associates, LLC 
Representative:  Shane Gomes, filed:  11/12/2013 

 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to incorporate outdoor seating and 
an ATM at 115 San Jose Avenue in the CV (Central Village) zoning district.  The ATM and 
outdoor seating are located within the outdoor plaza of the Mercantile, visible from the 
Esplanade.  The ATM faces into the plaza and not the street.       
   
DISCUSSION 
Within the Central Village zoning district, the location of business activity is regulated as follows:  

 
§17.21.035  Location of business activities. 
There shall be no business activities such as the display of merchandise, selling 
of food, or placing tables and chairs outside the enclosed premises of the 
business unless a conditional use permit for outdoor display of merchandise, 
take-out window or outdoor seating has been obtained from the City.   

 
ATM 
In early November, the applicant installed a new ATM on the plaza to replace the previous ATM 
which was enclosed in the small kiosk located near the entrance to the parking lot.  Staff 
received multiple code enforcement complaints regarding the new ATM color.  An ATM is a 
business activity; therefore requires approval of a Conditional Use Permit when located outside.  
Staff notified the property management that a Conditional Use Permit application must be 
submitted.  Within one week, the owner of the Mercantile submitted the application.  The newly 
installed ATM is a bright lime green color.  The applicant plans to paint the ATM a light yellow 
color to match the exterior of the Mercantile.         
 
Quasi-Public Seating Area 
The Mercantile accommodates a mix of local businesses including retail shops, restaurants, and 
a coffee shop.  On the west end of the property there is a spacious plaza that is accessed off 
the Esplanade.  The applicant is requesting a conditional use permit for five patio tables with 
seating on the existing plaza for public use.  The seating area will be a “quasi-public seating 
area”  which means an area located in a privately owned shopping center which is open to all of 
the patrons of all of the businesses of the shopping center and which consists of a seating area 

-113-

Item #: 5.B. 13-160 115 San Jose Avenue CUP FINAL.pdf



  
 

 

 

or similar area where there are tables, chairs, benches, landscaping or other similar amenities.  
Quasi-public seating areas are exempt from the parking requirements of the municipal code 
(§17.15.105) but must obtain a conditional use permit within the CV District.       
 
Conditional Use Permit 
Section 17.60.030 outlines the considerations in the review of a Conditional Use Permit 
application.  The following underlined considerations are applicable to the current application 
and must be reviewed by the Planning Commission prior to approval of a CUP.  
 

A.  In considering an application for a conditional use, the planning commission shall give due 
regard to the nature and condition of all adjacent uses and structures. In issuing a conditional 
use permit, the commission may impose requirements and conditions with respect to location, 
design, siting, maintenance and operation of the use in addition to those expressly provided in 
this chapter for the particular use, as may be necessary for the protection of the adjacent 
properties and in the public interest. 
 
Staff analysis: The plaza is located within a prime shopping and entertainment area of the 
Central Village frequented by visitors.  The quasi-public seating area will complement the 
adjacent uses by providing visitors with an opportunity to sit and relax while observing the 
surrounding shops and restaurants.  The location of the quasi-public seating area and ATM do 
not create any issues with pedestrian circulation.  Adequate spacing exists between the tables.  
The ATM faces into the private plaza; therefore, people waiting to utilize the ATM would do so 
from within the plaza and not interfere with the pedestrian circulation on the sidewalk.   
 

B. In approving a use permit, the commission may include such conditions as the commission 
deems reasonable and necessary under the circumstances to preserve the integrity and 
character of the district and to secure the general purposes of this title, the general plan, and the 
local coastal program. Such conditions, without limiting the discretion and authority of the 
commission, may include time limitations, further architectural and site review, street dedication, 
and street and drainage improvements. 
 
The Planning Commission may include Conditions of Approval relevant to the application that 
are deemed necessary to preserve the integrity and character of the Central Village district.  
Staff has included two conditions of approval to regulate color and access.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development staff recommends the approval of the quasi-public seating area 
and ATM within the private plaza, as conditioned.  
 
CONDITIONS 
1. The ATM shall be painted to match the Mercantile.  No reflective lettering or paint is 

allowed.   
2. The ATM shall be oriented so access is from within the plaza and does not obstruct 

pedestrian flow within the sidewalk.   
 
FINDINGS 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the project.  The project proposes a compatible land uses that can be mitigated 
through proper management by the applicant.  Allowing a quasi-public seating area and 

-114-

Item #: 5.B. 13-160 115 San Jose Avenue CUP FINAL.pdf



  
 

 

 

an ATM within the Central Village zoning district will not cause impacts to the adjacent 
commercial or residential dwelling units.  The application reflects the objectives of the 
Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 

reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the conditional use permit standards of 
the Capitola Municipal Code.  As conditioned, the conditional use complements the 
existing character and integrity of the Central Village. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
The proposed project involves a conditional use permit with no expansion of use beyond 
what has currently existed.  No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during 
project review by either the Planning Department Staff or the Planning Commission. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Site plan with tables and ATM 
 
Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan  
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
P:\PlanningCommission\2013\December 5,2013\115 San Jose CUP staff report.docx 

-115-

Item #: 5.B. 13-160 115 San Jose Avenue CUP FINAL.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-116-



-117-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A Site Plan.pdf



-118-

Item #: 5.B. Attachment A Site Plan.pdf


	AGENDA
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. November 7, 2013 Draft Planning Commission Minutes
	[11-7-13 DRAFT Minutes.pdf]


	4. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. 209 Fanmar Way #13-150 APN: 035:163-01 & 02
	[13-150 209 Fanmar Way.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Plans.pdf]
	[Attachment B. Landscape Plans.pdf]
	[Attachment C. Letter John Hofacre.pdf]
	Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit to remodel an existing single-family home in the CV (Central Village) Zoning DistrictEnvironmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionOwner: Vince and Sheryl BarabbaRepresentative: John Hofacre, Architect, filed: 10/24/2013

	B. 141 Magellan Street #13-153 APN 036-192-20
	[13-153 141 Magellan Street Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Plans.pdf]
	[Attachment B. Materials and Color Board.pdf]
	Design Permit and Coastal Development Permit for remodel of existing single-family home in the R-1 (Single-Family) Zoning District. Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionOwner: Gene BensonRepresentative: Roy Horn, filed: 11/4/2013

	C. 723 El Salto Drive #13-155 APN: 036-143-35
	[13-155 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Tenative Map.pdf]
	[Attachment B. Letter from Mr. Dodds.pdf]
	[Attachment C 2011 Approved Four Unit Condo.pdf]
	[Attachment D Coastal Findings.pdf]
	Coastal Development Permit and Minor Land Division to create two lots of record, and request for a two-year extension to the previously approved Minor Land Division to convert four apartment units to condominiums in the R-1/VS (Single Family/Visitor Serving) Zoning District.This project requires a Coastal Development Permit which is appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted through the City.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionOwner: Doug DoddsRepresentative: Thacher & Thompson, filed: 11/5/2013

	D. 904 Sir Francis #06-061 APN 036-222-07
	[904 Sir Francis Avenue Extension CUP Final.pdf]
	[Attachment A.pdf]
	[Attachment B.pdf]
	Request for a one-year extension to a previously approved Coastal Development Permit and Architectural and Site Review for the remodel of an existing single-family residence and construction of a new second story in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Justin and Lisa Maffia


	5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
	[41st Ave 2178 7 Eleven Carwash 10-3-2013 PC.pdf]
	[Attachment A. Plan.pdf]
	[Attachment B. Noise Study.pdf]
	[Attachment C. Carwash Tech Info.pdf]
	A. 2178 41st Avenue #12-080 APN: 034-221-02
	Modification to Design Permit and a Conditional Use Permit to incorporate a carwash into the recently approved commercial retail building (7-Eleven) in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionProperty Owner: Ed Hadad, filed: 3/28/13Representative: Joe Nguyen, ASI Consulting

	B. 115 San Jose 13-160 APN 035-221-15
	[13-160 115 San Jose Avenue CUP FINAL.pdf]
	[Attachment A Site Plan.pdf]
	Conditional Use Permit for outdoor seating and an outdoor ATM in the CV (Central Village) Zoning District.Environmental Determination: Categorical ExemptionOwner: Capitola Associates, LLCRepresentative: Shane Gomes, filed: 11/12/2013


	6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS
	8. ADJOURNMENT

